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Date: 4th December, 2025 
To, 
BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai – 400001 
 
 
Fax No.: 022-22721919 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, 
Bandra- Kurla Complex 
Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400051 
 
Fax No.: 022-26598120 

Ref.: Leel Electricals Limited   
(Scrip Code: 517518) 

Ref.: Leel Electricals Limited   (NSE 
Symbol: LEEL) 

 
Subject: Notice of 35th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) & Annual Report for the Financial Year 
2021-22, pursuant to Regulations 30 and 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") 
  
Dear Sir / Ma’am, 
Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 30 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, this is to inform you that the 35th Annual 
General Meeting (‘35th AGM’) of LEEL Electricals Limited (“The Company”), is scheduled to be held 
on Monday, 29th of December, 2025, at 02:00 P.M. (IST), through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) 
facility/ Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’). 
That in compliance with the relevant Circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India, the Notice of the 35th AGM and Annual Report for FY 2021-22 is 
circulated only through electronic means to the Members, who have registered their email Ids with the 
Company/ Depositories.  
 
Furthermore, in accordance with Regulation 36 of SEBI Listing Regulations, a letter providing web-link 
for accessing the Annual Report for FY 2021-22 and Notice of 35th AGM is being sent to all those 
Members who have not registered their email Ids. 
 
The same is also hosted on the Company's website and can also be accessed through following web link: 
https://www.leelelectric.com/annual_reports.html  
 
Key Information Pertaining to the AGM: 
 
Serial No. of AGM 35th AGM 
Day, Date & Time of AGM Monday, December 29, 2025 at 02:00 P.M. (IST) 
Mode Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means 
Cut-off date for Remote E-
Voting /  E-Voting and attending 
the e-AGM 

Tuesday, December 23, 2025 

Remote e-voting start time and 
date 

From 09:30 A.M. (IST) on Friday, December 26, 2025 

Remote e-voting end time and 
date 

Till 05:00 P.M. (IST) on Sunday, December 28, 2025 
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That in pursuance of Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), 2015, please find enclosed 
herewith the Notice of the 35th AGM and Annual Report for FY 2021-22. 
 
This is for your information and record. 
 
Thanking you. 
Yours faithfully, 
 
For LEEL Electricals Limited 
 
 
NEERAJ GUPTA 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07176093 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEERAJ 
GUPTA

Digitally signed by 
NEERAJ GUPTA 
Date: 2025.12.04 
17:07:28 +05'30'
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Disclaimer 

This Annual Report pertains to a period prior to the acquisition of the Company by the present 
management. The Company was acquired as a going concern pursuant to the Order dated 
March 21st, 2024 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench 
(“NCLT”), whereby the Successful Auction Purchaser took over the Corporate Debtor after 
payment of full consideration. 

For ready reference, the Hon’ble NCLT has expressly recorded and directed as under: 

 Para xiii (Page 6): “Liquidator and Respondent shall be at liberty to take all the steps required 
to make accounting entries for the smooth transition and clearing the balance sheet.” 

 Para xl (Page 13): “A direction be issued to the Liquidator that all the compliances for the 
period up to the Effective Date including filing of necessary documents and returns with the 
Registrar of Companies, Income Tax Authorities any other Government Authorities should be 
completed.” 

 Para VI (Pages 41–42): “The Liquidator is directed to ensure completion of pending filings of 
statement and required forms with the concerned Registrar of Companies, Income Tax 
Authorities and any other Government/Statutory Authorities.” 

 Para XIV (Pages 43–44): “The Liquidator is directed to complete all compliances for the period 
up to taking over of the Corporate Debtor by the Successful Auction Purchaser/bidder after 
paying the full consideration.” 

 Para 35 (Page 44): “We direct the Liquidator to provide all support and assistance to the 
Successful Auction Bidder for smooth implementation of sale of the Corporate Debtor as a going 
concern.” 

Accordingly, the new management states and clarifies as follows: 

1. The Company was under the control of the erstwhile directors/Resolution 
Professional / Liquidator during the entire period covered by this Annual Report (FY 
2018–19 to FY 2023–24). The present management had no involvement whatsoever in 
operations, financial reporting, decision-making, statutory filings or compliance 
processes during this period. 

2. Based on the NCLT directions, the responsibility for completion of all past statutory 
filings and compliances for the period up to the Effective Date squarely rests with 
the erstwhile directors/Resolution Professional / Liquidator. The entire 
responsibility for ensuring statutory and regulatory compliances for all periods prior 
to the Effective Date rested exclusively with the Resolution Professional/Liquidator, 
as clearly directed by the Hon’ble NCLT. 

3. The new management is not responsible or liable for: 

o any non-compliances, irregularities, omissions, defaults, penalties, interest, or 
regulatory actions relating to the said period; 

o the accuracy, completeness or reliability of records, financial statements, data 
or annexures pertaining to the prior period; 
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o any past liabilities, claims, demands, litigation, disputes or contingent 
liabilities arising out of the operations of the Company for the aforesaid period. 

4. This Annual Report has been prepared solely on the basis of the limited documents 
made available by the Liquidator, including the audited financial statements handed 
over post-acquisition. The new management has not independently verified the 
historical information and accordingly expresses no assurance or opinion on the 
same. The new management makes no representation or warranty regarding the 
accuracy, completeness, correctness, or reliability of any information, numbers, 
disclosures, reports, annexures, or statements relating to the prior period included in 
this Annual Report. 

5. This Annual Report is being prepared and filed only to meet the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, in order to regularize pending filings 
and avoid technical non-compliance. 
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NOTICE OF 35th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
(Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

  

Notice is hereby given that the 35th Annual General Meeting of the members of ‘LEEL 
Electricals Limited’ (CIN: L29120UP1987PLC091016) will be held on Monday, 29th Day of 
December, 2025 at 02:00 PM (IST), through video conferencing / other audio-visual means 
(“VC”/ “OAVM”) to transact the following business (es):  
  
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS:  
  
1. ADOPTION OF AUDITED STANDALONE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON: 
 
To consider and adopt the Annual Audited financial statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 consisting of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit 
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the Financial ended on even date, including any 
explanatory statements annexed thereto, together with the reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Annual Financial statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, the report of the auditor’s thereon and the report of 
the Board of Directors for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, as placed before the 
35th Annual General Meeting be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.” 

  
 

For LEEL Electricals Limited 

 
 
NEERAJ GUPTA 
Managing Director 
 
Date: December 04th, 2025 
Place: Noida 
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NOTES FOR MEMBERS’ ATTENTION: 

1. The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (NCLT) vide its order 
dated 04.03.2020 admitted the application for initiation of Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process against the Company. Further, the liquidation proceedings were 
initiated against the Company by the Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated 06.12.2021. 
Thereafter, NCLT by its order dated 21.03.2024 inter-alia approved the directions for 
implementing sale of the Company as a going concern to a Successful Auction Purchaser 
i.e. Krishna Ventures Limited (KVL/Acquirer). For which, the Liquidator issued the Sale 
Certificate dated 12.06.2024 for sale of the Company as going concern pursuant to the 
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (Code).  

 
2. The new management took control towards the beginning of July 2024 and is actively 

pursuing various initiatives to revive and rehabilitate the Company across all operational 
and financial fronts.  
 

3. That pursuant to the Hon’ble NCLT orders dated 21.03.2024 and 23.10.2024, as a part of 
Capital Restructuring, the Company proposed to allot 94.97% of its shareholding, i.e., 
1,02,60,000 equity shares, to the promoter and promoter group, and the remaining 5%, 
i.e., 5,43,011 equity shares, to the Eligible Public Shareholders (as on record date fixed for 
the purpose, i.e., 22.11.2024, in the ratio of 43:1). The issue and allotment of equity share 
capital in this regard were approved at the Meetings of the Board of Directors (08/2024-
25) held on 07.03.2025 and (02/2025-26) dated 26.07.2025. That in view of the considerate 
discussions with the concerned Stock Exchanges, the application for listing of these 
securities has been submitted. Hence, be noted that the Company is in the process of 
Capital Restructuring as per the aforementioned Hon’ble NCLT Orders dated 21.03.2024 
and 23.10.2024.  
 

4. That the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (”MCA”) has vide its General Circular No. 09/2024 
dated September 19, 2024 read with 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 read with General 
Circular No.10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 read with General Circular No. 02/2022 
dated May 05, 2022 read with General Circular No. 19/2021 dated December 08, 2021 
read with General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021 read with General 
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 read with General Circular No. 20/2020 
dated May 05, 2020, General Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 read with General 
Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “MCA Circulars”) and the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide Circular No. Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 read with 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 read with SEBI/ 
HO/CFD/PoD2/P/ CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023 read with Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 read with 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 and Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the “SEBI Circulars”) have permitted the companies to hold their general 
meetings through video conferencing / any other audio visual means (“VC/OAVM 
facility”) without the physical presence of the members at a common venue. Hence, in 
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compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is 
being held though VC facility 
 

5. The proceedings of this AGM will be deemed to be conducted at the Corporate Office of 
the Company at Plot No 57, Ecotech XII Industrial area, Bisrakh, Gautam Buddha Nagar, 
Uttar Pradesh, India, 201306. 
 

6. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM 
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not 
be a member of the company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA circulars 
and the SEBI circulars through VC/OAVM, the requirement of physical attendance of 
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, in terms of the MCA circulars and the 
SEBI circulars, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available 
for this AGM and hence the proxy form, attendance slip and route map of AGM are not 
annexed to this Notice. 
 

7. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM 
will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will 
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 
without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 
 

8. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 
for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

9. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act relating to the Special 
Business (es), if any, to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of 
the Notice. 
 

10. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 
(as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting 
through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting 
votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of 
the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 

 
11. Only registered members of the Company may attend and vote at the AGM through 

VC/OAVM facility. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through 
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VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 
of the Act. 

 
12. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of 

member/beneficial owners (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the cut-off date i.e. 
Tuesday, December 23rd, 2025. That as afore-mentioned, since the Corporate Actions are 
under process, only those shareholders, holding shares after the said allotment of total 
1,08,03,011 equity shares of the Company, in MCA records, shall be entitled to vote at the 
ensuing AGM. Furthermore, it is hereby noted that the fractional allotment of equity 
shares pursuant to the said capital restructuring shall not be reckoned for determining 
voting rights, as the Company is presently unable to deal with such fractional shares due 
to pending corporate actions. 

 
13. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Wednesday, 

December 24th, 2025 to Monday, December 29th, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose 
of Annual General Meeting 

 
14. In case of joint holders, a member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 

their names as per the Register of Shareholders will be entitled to cast vote at the AGM. 
 

15. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy 
to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in 
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of 
the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate 
can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
16. The Institutional Investors, who are members of the Company, are encouraged to attend 

and vote at the 35th AGM through VC/OAVM facility. Corporate members intending to 
appoint their authorized representatives pursuant to Section 112 & 113 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, as the case maybe, to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM or to vote through 
remote e-Voting, are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board 
Resolution to the Scrutinizer by e-mail at cs.goelaakash@gmail.com with a copy marked 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and the Company at info@leelelectric.com. 

 
17. Electronic copy of the Notice of 35th AGM is being sent to all the shareholders, whose 

email IDs are registered with the Company/Depositories, , for communication purposes 
unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. Further, a letter containing 
web-link where this Notice along with Annual Report has been uploaded, is being sent 
to those whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depositories. 

 
18. In accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and Circular Nos. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/ 
CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 2023 issued by Securities Exchange Board of India 
(collectively referred to as ”SEBI Circulars”) Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 
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Report for FY 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose 
email addresses are registered with the RTA/Company/Depositories. Members may 
note that the Notice and Annual Report for FY 2021-22 are also available on the 
Company’s website (www.leelelectric.com) under ‘Investor Relations’ section, websites 
of the Stock Exchanges i.e., the BSE Limited (www.bseindia.com) and the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (www.nseindia.com), and on the website of CDSL 
(www.evotingindia.com). 

 
19. In case any member is desirous of obtaining hard copy of the Annual Report for the 

financial year 2021-22 and Notice of the 35th AGM of the Company, he/she may send 
request to the Company’s email address at info@leelelectric.com mentioning Folio No./ 
DP ID, Client ID and the No. of shares held. The Notice is being sent to all the members, 
whose names appeared in the Register of Members / records of depositories as beneficial 
owners, as on Friday, November 28, 2025. 

 
20. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 

13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM, along with the Annual Report has been uploaded 
on the website of the Company at www.leelelectric.com. The Notice can also be accessed 
from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively.  The AGM 
Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com. 

 
21. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may 

register themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email 
address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/ folio number, PAN, mobile 
number at info@leelelectric.com up to Sunday, December 28th, 2025. Those Members who 
have registered themselves shall be given an opportunity of speaking live in AGM. The 
Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the AGM and avoid repetition of questions. 

 
22. As per the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, the facility for registration of 

nomination is available for the shareholders in respect of the shares held by them. 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form in single name are advised to make 
nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company, as permitted under Section 
72 of the Companies Act, 2013. They are requested to write to RTA of the Company in the 
prescribed form i.e., Form No. SH-13 as per the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014. In case of shares held in dematerialized form, the nomination 
form has to be lodged directly with the respective Depository Participant (DP). 
 

23. SEBI has mandated listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only, 
while processing service requests for issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from 
unclaimed suspense account; renewal/exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; 
subdivision/ splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities 
certificates/folios; and transmission and transposition. In this regard, shareholders are 
requested to make requests in Form ISR–4. It may be noted that any service request can 
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be processed only after the folio is KYC compliant. All the relevant forms can be obtained 
from the Company on  info@leelelectric.com. 

 
24. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed 

companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, 
except in cases of requests received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view 
of this and to eliminate all risks. Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form are 
requested to intimate all particulars of bank mandates, nominations, power of attorney, 
change of address, contact numbers etc., to their Depository Participant (DP). 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate such details to the 
RTA.  
 

25. Shareholders are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal 
address, email address, mobile/phone numbers, PAN, mandates, nominations, and bank 
details etc., to their Depository Participants (“DPs”) in case shares are held by them in 
electronic form and to Company’s RTA in Form ISR-1, in case shares are held by them in 
physical form. All the relevant forms are available on the website of the Company i.e. 
info@leelelectric.com 

 
26. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has vide circular No. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated 20th April 2018 mandated the 
submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities 
market. Shareholders holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit 
their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their Demat 
accounts. Shareholders holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the 
Company and RTA.  
 

27. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings issued by ICSI in respect of the directors seeking appointment/re-appointment 
at the AGM, is provided in their respective explanatory statement. The directors being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as required under the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules made thereunder as also provided in the annexure to the Notice. 
 

28. Non-Resident Indian shareholders are requested to inform the Company/RTA 
regarding:  

• Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.  

• Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, 
account type, account number, IFSC Code, and address of the bank with PIN code 
number, if not furnished earlier. 

 
29. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, those shareholders whose email address is not 

registered with the Company or with their respective Depository Participant(s) and who 
wish to receive the Notice of the 38th AGM and all other communications sent by the 



Annual Report 2021-22  NOTICE OF 35th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

11 | P a g e  
 

Company from time to time can get their email address registered by following the steps 
as given below:  

a) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, please send a scanned copy of a 
signed request letter mentioning your folio number, complete address, email 
address to be registered along with a scanned self-attested copy of the PAN and 
any document (such as Driving License, Passport, Bank Statement, AADHAR) 
supporting the registered address of the member, by email to the Company at 
info@leelelectric.com or to the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, Skyline 
Financial Services Private Limited (RTA) at info@skylinerta.com  

b) For shareholders holding shares in DEMAT form, please update your email address 
through your respective Depository Participant(s).  

 
30. The Company has appointed M/s. G Aakash & Associates, Company Secretaries,  as the 

Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the entire voting process i.e., voting during the AGM, to 
ensure that the process is carried out in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer 
shall, immediately after the completion of the scrutiny of the voting (votes cast during the 
AGM), within 2 working days from the conclusion of the AGM, submit a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favor and against the resolution(s), invalid 
votes if any, and whether the resolution(s) has/have been carried or not, to the Chairman 
or in his absence to any other Director authorized by the Board, who shall countersign 
the same. Based on the Scrutinizer’s Report, the result will be declared by the Chairman.  
 

31. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report will be displayed on the notice 
board of the Company at its Registered Office and Company’s website i.e., 
www.leelelectric.com. The result shall also be submitted to the Stock Exchanges, where 
the Company’s shares are listed i.e. www.bseindia.com  and www.nseindia.com   

 
32. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding 

maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of contracts or 
arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection 
in electronic mode. Members who seek inspection may write to us at 
info@leelelectric.com.  

 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL 
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER: 

 
 
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  
 
Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in 
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.  
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(i) The voting period begins on December 26th, 2025, at 09:30hrs (IST) and ends on 

December 28th, 2025, at 17:00hrs (IST). During this period shareholders’ of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the 
cut-off date (record date) of December 23rd, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. 
The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 
(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled 

to vote at the meeting venue. 
 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, 
under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide 
remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. 
However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  Currently, there are multiple 
e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. 
This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs 
and passwords by the shareholders. In order to increase the efficiency of the voting 
process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all 
the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat 
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders 
would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, 
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process.  

 
 

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual    
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  

 
(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 

9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 
to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access 
e-Voting facility. 
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 
meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode 
CDSL/NSDL is given below: 
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Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Demat mode with 
CDSL Depository 

 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 
any further authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest 
are requested to visit cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and 
click on login icon & My Easi New (Token) Tab. 

  
 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 

see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able 
to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system 
of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the 
e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

  
 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 

is available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on 
login & My Easi New (Token) Tab and then click on 
registration option. 
 

 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page. The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able 
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
NSDL Depository 

 If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please 
visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 
of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A 
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider 
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website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 
 

 If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

  
 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

  
 For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evoting
login.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit 
Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. 
Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile 
number and click on login. After successful authentication, 
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you 
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
Depository 
Participants (DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, 
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-
Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the 
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remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

  
 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised 
to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned 
website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 
     
Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 
can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 
can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 
- 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

 
 

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in 
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 

 
(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and 

shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form. 
 
 
1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 
2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

 
3) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 
 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to 
www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then 
your existing password is to be used.  
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6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 
 For Physical shareholders and other than individual 

shareholders holding shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders) 
 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact 
Company/RTA. 

Dividend Bank 
Details 
 OR Date of Birth 
(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in 
dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in 
the company records in order to login. 

  
 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 

company, please enter the member id / folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field. 

 
 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used 
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they 
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. 
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 
 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the 
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The 
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you 
dissent to the Resolution. 
 

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details. 
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(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, 
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 
 

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 
 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option 
on the Voting page. 
 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and 
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 
prompted by the system. 
 

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be 
made available to scrutinizer for verification. 
 
 

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote 
Voting only. 
 
 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register 
themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the 
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the 
account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be 
delink in case of any wrong mapping. 

 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should 
be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the 
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; info@leelelectric.com, if 
they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting 
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders: 

 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs.goelaakash@gmail.com with 
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a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. 
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution /Power 
of Attorney /Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution 
/Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 
 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?“ option available on www.cdslindia.com to reset the 
password. 
 

3. In case of any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, 
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 21 09911 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 
1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the 

instructions mentioned above for e-voting.  
 

2. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 
through the CDSL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps 
mentioned above for Access to CDSL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can 
see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. 
You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The 
link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN 
of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User 
ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may 
retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the 
notice to avoid last minute rush. 
 

3. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of 
Company will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned 
above for e-voting. 
  

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 

5. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better 
experience. 
 

6. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good 
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
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7. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-
Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 
 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed 
to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and 
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
system available during the EGM/AGM. 
 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the 
AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered 
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 
4. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) 
by email to info@leelelectric.com. 
 

5. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 
respective Depository Participant (DP)  
 

6. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with 
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & 
joining virtual meetings through Depository. 
 

7. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + 
CLID or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (investor.relations@refex.co.in). If you are an 
Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer 
to the login method explained at step 1(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining 
virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
 

8. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com for procuring user id and voting by providing above 
mentioned documents. 
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9. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and 
email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 

Declaration of voting results: 

1. A member may participate in the 32nd AGM even after exercising his right to vote 
through remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM. 
 

2. Scrutinizer for e-Voting: PCS Aakash Goel, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the e-Voting process in a fair and transparent manner. He has 
communicated his willingness to be appointed and will be available for the said 
purpose. 
 

3. Scrutinizer’s Report: The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, 
first count the votes cast during the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through 
remote e-voting and shall submit not later than two working days of the conclusion of 
the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, 
if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall 
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 
 

4. Voting Results: The results of voting will be declared and the same along with the 
Scrutinizer’s Report will be published on the website of the Company 
www.leelelectric.com and the website of CDSL (https://www.cdslindia.com). 
 

5. The Company shall simultaneously communicate the results along with the 
Scrutinizer’s Report to the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited, where the securities of the Company are listed.  

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-
Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800 21 09911 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to 
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 
25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), 
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  toll free no. 1800 
21 09911. 

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

 LEEL Electricals Limited 
 
 

NEERAJ GUPTA 
Date: December 4th, 2025   Managing Director 
Place: Noida  DIN: 07176093 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

To,   
The Members,  
LEEL Electricals Limited  

 
Your Directors are pleased to present the 35th Annual Report of the Company together with 
the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31st, 2022. 
 
1. STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS: 

 
The Reconstituted Board of Directors presents to the Members the 35th Annual Report of 
the Company on the business and operations of the Company together with the Audited 
Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31st, 2022. 
 
The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) was initiated, on a petition filed by 
MKM Technologies Private Limited (‘the Operational Creditor’) under Section 9 of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“IBC 2016”), against the Company, being admitted 
vide an order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Allahabad Bench 
dated March 04, 2020. Further, pursuant to the said Order passed by the Hon’ble NCLT, 
Allahabad, Mr. Arvind Mittal bearing Registration No. IBBI/PA-001/IP-P01358/2018 was 
appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) from the date of the Order and the 
powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended, during the pendency of the proceedings 
and were exercised by Mr. Arvind Mittal till he continued to be the Interim Resolution 
Professional. Thereafter, Mr. Ganga Ram Agarwal bearing Registration No. IBBI/IPA-
002/IP-N00874/2019-2020/12777 was appointed on the said position and he, in his 
capacity as RP, took control and custody of the management and operations of the 
Company, vide Hon’ble NCLAT, New Delhi Order dated 21.12.2020 in Company Appeal 
(AT) (Insolvency) No. 1100 of 2020. 
 
Upon the failure to achieve a Resolution Plan, the Liquidation proceedings were initiated 
against the Company by an Order dated 06.12.2021 of Hon’ble NCLT in CP 
(IB)/189/ALD/2019 and the RP was confirmed as liquidator of the Company. 
 
After following due process of law as prescribed under the IBC and the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation Process) Regulation, 2016 (“Liquidation 
Regulation”), the Company was successfully sold as a going concern under Liquidation to 
the Successful Bidder (“Krishna Ventures Limited”/“KVL”/“Acquirer”). The Hon’ble 
NCLT by its order dated 21.03.2024 inter-alia approved the directions for implementing 
sale of the Company as a going concern to a Successful Auction Purchaser i.e. Krishna 
Ventures Limited (KVL/Acquirer). For which, the Liquidator issued the Sale Certificate 
dated 12.06.2024 for sale of the Company as going concern pursuant to the provisions of 
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (Code). 
 
Members may kindly note that, the Directors of the Reconstituted Board were not in office 
for the period to which this report primarily pertains. During the CIRP/Liquidation period 
(i.e. March 4th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024) the Resolution Professional/Liquidator was entrusted 
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with the management of the Company. Prior to the Insolvency Commencement date, the 
erstwhile Board of Directors had the oversight on the management of the affairs of the 
Company. 
 
The reconstituted Board is submitting this report solely to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed thereunder and the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements}, 
Regulations 2015. The reconstituted Board is not to be considered responsible to discharge 
fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight on financial and operational health of the 
Company and performance of the management for the period prior to the Acquisition, in 
accordance with the Section 32A of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
Members are requested to read this report in light of the fact that the reconstituted Board 
and the new Management, inter alia, are in the process of implementing the NCLT order. 
 
 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  
(Rs.in Crores) 

Particulars For the Year ended 
March 31st, 2022 

For the Year ended 
March 31st, 2021 

Revenue from Operations  0.01 - 
Other Income  0.46 0.17 
Total Income 0.47 0.17 
Less: Expenses 36.22 71.33 
Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional items (35.75) (71.16) 
Exceptional Item - - 
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (35.75) (71.16) 
Less: Tax Expenses 
Current Tax 
Deferred Tax 

- - 

Profit/ (Loss) for the period (35.75) (71.16) 
Earning per Equity Share   
Basic/ Diluted (F.V. Rs.10 each) (8.86) (22.51) 

                  
                
3. COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE AND REVIEW:  

 
During the year under review, the Company recorded a total revenue of Rs.0.01 Crores for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2022, as against NIL revenue in the previous reporting 
period. The total expenses for the year stood at Rs.36.22 Crores compared to Rs.71.33 Crores 
in the previous year. Consequently, the Company reported a net loss of Rs.35.75 Crores for 
the year under review as against a net loss of Rs.71.16 Crores in the preceding period. 
 
That the above-mentioned financial summary and company’s performance pertain to the 
period prior to acquisition of the Company under IBC, 2016. The reconstituted Board is 
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submitting this report solely to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, and the rules framed thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements}, Regulations 2015. And accordingly, the 
reconstituted Board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with 
respect to the oversight on financial and operational health of the Company and 
performance of the management for the period prior to the Acquisition, in accordance with 
the Section 32A of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 
4. TRASNFER TO RESERVES: 

 
During the period under review, the company was into CIRP/Liquidation and during the 
said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs of 
the Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution Professional/Liquidator 
in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The 
reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available in this regard. 
 
The details of the reserves and surplus are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended March 31st, 2022, which forms part of this Annual Report.  

 
5. DIVIDEND:  

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
 
As per the note no. 48 of the financial statements for the year ended March 31st, 2022, which 
forms part of this Annual Report, no dividend and proposed dividend was paid during the 
reporting period. 

Furthermore, it is hereby noted that this report pertains to the period prior to acquisition 
of the Company under IBC, 2016, and the compliance as to the Dividend Distribution 
Policy cannot be affirmed by the reconstituted Board. 

 
6. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL: 

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
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The details in relation to equity share capital are disclosed in the note no. 16 of the financial 
statements for the year ended March 31st, 2022, which forms part of this Annual Report. 

  
7. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES COMPANIES: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

The details in relation to subsidiaries, joint venture and associate companies are disclosed 
in the note no. 6 of the financial statements for the year ended March 31st, 2022, which 
forms part of this Annual Report. 

It is hereby noted that the reconstituted Board is submitting this report solely to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed 
thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements}, Regulations 2015. And accordingly, the reconstituted Board is 
not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight 
on financial and operational health of the Company and performance of the management 
for the period prior to the acquisition, in accordance with the Section 32A of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 
8. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:  

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
That the reconstituted Board of Directors does not possess relevant information with 
respect to acceptance of any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 and 76 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 

 
9. LISTING OF SHARES: 

 
The Equity shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).  
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10. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

It is hereby noted that the reconstituted Board is submitting this report solely to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed 
thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements}, Regulations 2015. And accordingly, the reconstituted Board is 
not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight 
on financial and operational health of the Company and performance of the management 
for the period prior to the acquisition, in accordance with the Section 32A of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
 

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
 
The Particulars of loans given, Investment made, Guarantees and Securities provided, if 
any, are disclosed in the financial statement for FY 2021-22, which forms part of this Annual 
Report. 

  
12. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
 
Further, the Composition of the Board of Directors shall not be applicable during the 
CIRP/Liquidation Period in respect of a Company as affairs managed by Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator.  
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#Data taken from Public Domain 
However, the details of the Suspended Board of Directors as on March 31st, 2022, are as 
follows: 
 

DIN/PAN Name Designation 
07857873 Mr. Deepak Uniyal Non-Executive Director 
06726246 Mr. Velayutham Shoolagiri 

Appojichettiar 
Non-Executive Director 

08622976 Ms. Kavita Shrivastav Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

 
That pursuant to the Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad, order dated March 21, 2024, the new 
composition of the Board of Directors became effective from July 1, 2024. Details of the 
reconstituted Board, as on date, are as under: 
 

DIN Name Designation 
07176093 Mr. Neeraj Gupta Managing Director 
11085739 Mr. Bhoopendra Gaur Additional (Executive) Director & CFO 
10686556 Mr. Durgesh Kumar Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Director 
09088347 Mr. Mahesh Chandra Sharma Non-Executive Independent Director 
10204473 Ms. Namrata Sharma Non-Executive Independent Director 
10204543 Mr. Kanwar Nitin SIngh Non-Executive (Additional) 

Independent Director 
 
 

13. MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES / REGULATORS / TRIBUNALS  
 
During the FY 2019-20, the Hon’ble National Company Tribunal [NCLT], Allahabad Bench, 
vide its order dated March 04th, 2020, admitted an application, under Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process [CIRP] 
against your Company.  
 
Further, during the period under review, the Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated 06.12.2021 
initiated the liquidation proceedings against the Company. 
 
However, during the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and 
during the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of 
the affairs of the Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
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14. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

During the CIRP/Liquidation period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the 
management of the affairs of the Company was vested with and carried out by the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

The Reconstituted Board, which has been in office since July 1, 2024, is submitting this 
Report solely to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
Accordingly, the present Directors are not to be regarded as responsible for discharging 
fiduciary duties relating to the oversight of the financial and operational performance of 
the Company, or the effectiveness of its internal financial and other controls, for the period 
under review or for any period prior to the acquisition of the Company. 

The Reconstituted Board has relied upon the documents and information provided by the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator while preparing this Report and the accompanying 
annexures, and the directors of Reconstituted Board shall not be considered responsible to 
discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight on financial and operational health 
of the Company and performance of the management for the period prior to the Effective 
Date. While preparation of annual report the management has relied on the documents 
provided by and information made available by the Resolution Professional. 

  
15. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard.  

 
16. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

 
17. DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENCE: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 



Annual Report 2021-22  DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

28 | P a g e  
 

of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

 
18. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as required under Section (92) (3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure -III to this Report. 

 
19. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES: 

The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and 
other details in terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
annexed as part of this report at Annexure - IV. 

 
20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

The details of Related Party Transaction, if any, are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements for the year ended March 31st, 2022, which forms part of this Annual Report. 

 
21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Corporate social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The disclosure pursuant to Rule 9 of 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith as 
Annexure- V. 
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22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

 
23. BOARD EVALUATION: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

 
24. POLICY OF DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

Hence, the reconstituted board is not to be considered responsible for any previous policy. 

 
25. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

The reconstituted new board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary 
duties with respect to internal control system and their adequacy for the Financial Year 
2021-22. 
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26. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

The reconstituted new board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary 
duties with respect to Risk Management for the Financial Year 2021-22. 

 
27. COMMITTEES OF BOARD: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. Based on the data available in the public domain, whatever details of various 
committees are given in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this report. 

 
28. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER 

POLICY: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

The reconstituted new board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary 
duties with respect to vigil mechanism for the Financial Year 2021-22. 

 
29. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 

ANALYSIS REPORT: 

During the reporting period, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during the 
said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs of 
the Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution Professional/Liquidator 
in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The 
reconstituted Board of Directors, appointed post-acquisition, has no access to, or 
independent knowledge of, the operations, decisions, transactions, compliances, records or 
internal workings of the Company for the said period.  
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The present Board has prepared this report solely on the basis of limited information, 
documents and financial statements available in the public domain and the restricted data 
handed over by the Liquidator, which is not independently verifiable. This document is 
being compiled strictly for the purpose of meeting statutory filing requirements and 
should not be construed as a confirmation, validation, or certification of the correctness, 
completeness or accuracy of any information, disclosures, or statements relating to the 
period prior to the Insolvency Commencement Date.  

The new management, the reconstituted Board of Directors, and the present officers of the 
Company shall not be responsible or liable, in any manner whatsoever, for: 
 any errors, omissions, misstatements, or inconsistencies in the historical information; 
 any non-compliances, defaults, penalties, liabilities, or regulatory consequences 

arising out of past periods; or 
 the accuracy or reliability of any legacy data included in this Report. 

A separate report on Corporate Governance in terms of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing 
Regulations’) forms part of this report. Also, a report on Management and discussion 
analysis is annexed herewith as Annexure-I. 

Furthermore, it is hereby noted that the reconstituted board and Senior Management 
(Including KMP’s) were not in office for this period and is not to be considered responsible 
to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to Corporate Governance for the Financial Year 
2021-22. 

 
30. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT: 

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Liquidator has appointed M/s M.K. Anand & Associates, as 
the Statutory Auditor(s) to carry out the Audit of Financial Statements of the Company for 
the period under review. 
 
The reconstituted Board of Directors of the Company has no information available in this 
regard. Hence, it is not to be considered responsible for the Audit during the period under 
review. 

 
31. COST AUDITORS: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Resolution Professional/Liquidator was at the helm of affairs 
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of your Company and responsible for conducting the cost audit for the reporting period 
and subsequently filing the Forms related to Appointment of Cost Auditor and Cost Audit 
Report with the Registrar of Companies. 

The new reconstituted Board are not in position for the appointment of Cost Auditor for 
previous years and accordingly are not able to file the forms related to the appointment 
and Audit Report for the previous years. Hence, the new reconstituted board is not to be 
considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to appointment and filing 
of Cost Audit Report for the Financial Year under review. 

 
32. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND REPORT: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.  

However, pursuant to the provisions of the Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 
Company has appointed M/s G Aakash & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in 
Practice to undertake the secretarial audit of the company for the Financial Year 2021-22. 
The report of Secretarial Audit is annexed to this report as Annexure II. 

 
33. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT REPORT: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

Provision of Regulation 55A & 76 of the SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 
1996, require a certificate issued by practicing Company Secretaries, undertaking the 
Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit in pursuant to SEBI Listing Regulations. The purpose 
of the audit is to reconcile the total number of shares held in National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL), Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and in physical form 
with the respect to admitted, issued and paid up capital of the Company.  

The reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting 
period is disclosed in Note no. 16 to the financial statement for FY 2021-22, which forms 
part of this Annual Report. In this regard, no other information is available with the new 
management. 
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34. DEPOSITORY SYSTEMS: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

 
35. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

The brief detailed information’s of the material changes and commitment affecting the 
Financial Position of the Company are the part of the Audited Financial Statement for FY 
2021-22 of the Company. 

 
36. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

Hence, the new reconstituted board is not to be considered responsible to discharge 
fiduciary duties with respect to POSH for the Financial Year 2021-22. 

 
37. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
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Hence, the new reconstituted board is not to be considered responsible to discharge 
fiduciary duties with respect to Compliance with Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI for 
the Financial Year 2021-22. 

 
38. DISCLOSURES UNDER MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

Hence, the new reconstituted board is not to be considered responsible to discharge 
fiduciary duties with respect to disclosure under maternity benefit act, 1961 for FY 2021-
22. 

 
39. INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS: 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notification dated February 16, 2015, 
notified the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain class of companies. 
Ind AS has replaced the existing Indian GAAP prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Pursuant 
to the aforesaid notification, the Company has transitioned to Ind AS. 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

 
40. CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES: 

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
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41. INVESTOR EDUCTAION AND PROTECTION FUND [IEPF]: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

 
42. REMUNERATION RECEIVED BY MANAGING / WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR FROM 

HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY, IF ANY:  
 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
 
The details in this regard are disclosed in the financial statements for the year ended March 
31st, 2022, which forms part of this Annual Report. 
 
It is hereby noted that the Reconstituted Board, which has been in office since July 1, 2024, 
is submitting this Report solely to ensure compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. Accordingly, the present Directors are not to be regarded as responsible 
for discharging fiduciary duties relating to the oversight of the financial and operational 
performance of the Company, or the effectiveness of its internal financial and other 
controls, for the period under review or for any period prior to the acquisition of the 
Company, in accordance with the Section 32A of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016. 
 
 

43. INTERNAL AUDITORS: 
 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
 
Hence, the new reconstituted board is not to be considered responsible to discharge 
fiduciary duties with respect to Internal Audit for the Financial Year 2021-22. 
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44. FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR: 
 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
 
The Board was reconstituted pursuant to the Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad Order dated March 
21st, 2024, and in this regard, no information is available with the new management. 

 
45. EXPLANATIONS IN RESPONSE TO AUDITORS’ QUALIFICATION[S]:  

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

The Reconstituted Board, which has been in office since July 1, 2024, is submitting this 
Report solely to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
Accordingly, the present Directors are not to be regarded as responsible for discharging 
fiduciary duties relating to the oversight of the financial and operational performance of 
the Company, or the effectiveness of its internal financial and other controls, for the period 
under review or for any period prior to the acquisition of the Company. 

The Reconstituted Board has relied upon the documents and information provided by the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator while preparing this Report and the accompanying 
annexures, and the directors of Reconstituted Board shall not be considered responsible to 
discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight on financial and operational health 
of the Company and performance of the management for the period prior to the Effective 
Date. While preparation of annual report the management has relied on the documents 
provided by and information made available by the Resolution Professional. 

 
46. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
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Hence, the new reconstituted board is not to be considered responsible to discharge 
fiduciary duties with respect to maintenance of cost records for the Financial Year 2021-22. 

 
47. FAILURE TO IMPLEMENT ANY CORPORATE ACTION: 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 

 
48. DELAY, IF ANY, IN HOLDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
The Reconstituted Board, which has been in office since July 1, 2024, is submitting this 
Report solely to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
Accordingly, the present management is not responsible for delay in holding the AGM. 

 
49. STATEMENT OF DEVIATION OR VARIATION, IF ANY: 

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
 
Hence, the new reconstituted board is not to be considered responsible to discharge 
fiduciary duties with respect to funds, raised from public offer, pending utilisation for the 
Financial Year 2021-22. 
 
 

50. SUSPENSION OF TRADING: 
 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs 
of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
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Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available 
in this regard. 
 
#Data taken from Public Domain 
As per the information available on the websites of concerned Stock Exchanges, trading in 
securities of LEEL Electricals Limited was suspended with effect from August 19, 2019 
(closing hour of trading on August 16, 2019) on account of non-compliance with SEBI 
(LODR), Regulation, 2015. 
 
However, it is hereby noted that the reconstituted Board is submitting this report solely to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed 
thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements}, Regulations 2015. And accordingly, the reconstituted Board is 
not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight 
on financial and operational health of the Company and performance of the management 
for the period prior to the acquisition, in accordance with the Section 32A of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
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ANNEXURE – I 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the 
affairs of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information 
available in this regard. 
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ANNEXURE-II 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

 
To, 
The Members, 
 
LEEL ELECTRICALS LIMITED 
A-603 & 604, 6th Floor, Tower A, Logix Technova, 
Sector 132, Maharishi Nagar, Gautam Buddha Nagar, 
Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201304 
 
Sub: Our Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 of even date 
is to be read along with this letter. 
 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 
 
1. It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to maintain secretarial 
records, devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and 
operate effectively. 
 
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY 
 
2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards 
and procedures followed by the Company with respect to the secretarial compliances. 
 
3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s 
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
4. Whatever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the 
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
DISCLAIMER 
 
5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 
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6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
books and accounts and other information provided by the Company. 
 
For G AAKASH & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 
 
 
 
 
AAKASH GOEL 
(PROP.) 
M. NO.: A57213 
CP NO.: 21629 
 
Date:  02.12.2025 
Place: Haryana 
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[Form No. MR-3] 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
 
The Members, 
 
LEEL ELECTRICALS LIMITED 
A-603 & 604, 6th Floor, Tower A, Logix Technova, 
Sector 132, Maharishi Nagar, Gautam Buddha Nagar, 
Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201304 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by LEEL ELECTRICALS 
LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 
(Audit Period) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter along with 
Annexure-A attached to this report. 
 

I. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of: 

 
i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder; 
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iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 
thereunder;  

 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct 
Investment (ODI) and External Commercial Borrowings (ECB);  

 
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 

 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended till date; 
 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 1992 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018;* 
 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits 
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2022;* 

 
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008;* 
 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client; 

 
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2022;* 
 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018;* 

 
[*Note: During the year under report, no event has occurred attracting provisions of 
these Regulations] 
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vi. Other Laws applicable to the Company:- 
 
We have examined the framework, processes, and procedures of compliances of laws 
applicable on the Company in detail. We have examined reports, compliances with 
respect to applicable laws on test basis.  
 
Other Miscellaneous and state laws. 

a) Income Tax Act, 1961; 
b) Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 

 
   We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended 
from time to time and the Listing Agreements entered into by 
the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited. 

c) During the period under review the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, and 
Guidelines to the extent applicable, Standards, etc. as 
mentioned above subject to following: 
 

1. The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) was initiated, on a petition filed 
by MKM Technologies Private Limited (‘the Operational Creditor’) under Section 9 of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“IBC 2016”), against the Company, being 
admitted vide an order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Allahabad 
Bench dated March 04, 2020. Further, pursuant to the said Order passed by the Hon’ble 
NCLT, Allahabad, Mr. Arvind Mittal bearing Registration No. IBBI/PA-
001/IPP01358/2018 was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) from the 
date of the Order and the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended, during the 
pendency of the proceedings and were exercised by Mr. Arvind Mittal till he continued to 
be the Interim Resolution Professional. Thereafter, Mr. Ganga Ram Agarwal bearing 
Registration No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00874/2018-1920/12777 was appointed on the said 
position and he, in his capacity as RP, took control and custody of the management and 
operations of the Company, vide Hon’ble NCLAT, New Delhi Order dated 21.12.2020 in 
Company Appeal (AT) (Insolvency) No. 1100 of 2020. 
 

2. Upon the failure to achieve a Resolution Plan, the Liquidation proceedings were initiated 
against the Company by an Order dated 06.12.2021 of Hon’ble NCLT in CP 
(IB)/189/ALD/2019 and the RP was confirmed as liquidator of the Company. 
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3. After following due process of law as prescribed under the IBC and the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation Process) Regulation, 2016 (“Liquidation 
Regulation”), the Company was successfully sold as a going concern under Liquidation to 
the Successful Bidder (“Krishna Ventures Limited”/ “KVL”/ “Acquirer”). The Hon’ble 
NCLT by its order dated 21.03.2024 inter-alia approved the directions for implementing 
sale of the Company as a going concern to a Successful Auction Purchaser i.e. Krishna 
Ventures Limited (KVL/Acquirer). For which, the Liquidator issued the Sale Certificate 
dated 12.06.2024 for sale of the Company as going concern pursuant to the provisions of 
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (Code). 

 
4. The Directors of the Reconstituted Board were not in office for the period to which this 

report primarily pertains. During the CIRP/Liquidation period (i.e. March 4th, 2020 to 
July 1st, 2024) the Resolution Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the 
management of the Company. Prior to the Insolvency Commencement date, the erstwhile 
Board of Directors had the oversight on the management of the affairs of the Company. 

 
5. The reconstituted Board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary duties 

with respect to the oversight on financial and operational health of the Company and 
performance of the management for the period prior to the Acquisition, in accordance with 
the Section 32A of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. However, due to the fact 
that the Company was under CIRP, no records were available with the new management 
of the Company. The Company is in the process of implementation of the Approved NCLT 
Order and have undertaken activities of compliance to the various applicable provisions of 
the laws. 

 
Based on the information received and records maintained, we further report that: 
  

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance 
of Executive, Non-Executive, women and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period 
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
During the period under review, the Company was under CIRP and the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the management of the 
Company. Hence, in accordance with Regulation 15(2A) and 15(2B), the 
provisions related to Regulation 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21 shall not be applicable on 
the Company during the CIRP proceedings. Accordingly, the role and 
responsibilities of the Board of Directors after the Commencement of Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was being fulfilled by Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code 2016 and powers of the Board of Directors and Committees 
were suspended and details of the same are as follows: 
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S. No. Name DIN Category 
1. Mr. Velayutham 

Shoolagiri 
Appojichettiar 

06726246 Non- Executive Director 

2. Mr. Deepak 
Uniyal 

07857873 Non- Executive Director 

3. Mrs. Kavita 
Shrivastav 

08622976 Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

 
Pursuant to the Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad, order dated March 21, 2024, the new 
composition of the Board of Directors became effective from July 1, 2024. 
Details of the reconstituted Board, as on date, are as under: 

 
S. No. Name DIN Category 

1. Mr. Neeraj Gupta 07176093 Managing Director 
2. Mr. Bhoopendra 

Gaur 
11085739 Additional (Executive) 

Director & CFO 
3. Mr. Durgesh 

Kumar 
10686556 Non-Executive Non-

Independent 
Director 

4. Mr. Mahesh 
Chandra Sharma 

09088347 Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

5. Ms. Namrata 
Sharma 

10204473 Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

6. Mr. Kanwar Nitin 
SIngh 

10204543 Additional Non-
Executive Independent 

Director 
 

2. Adequate notice of at least seven days was given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings along with agenda and detailed notes on agenda and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting in compliance of the Act.  

 
3. Majority decision is carried through and recorded in the minutes of the 

Meetings. Further as informed, no dissent was given by any director in respect 
of resolutions passed in the board and committee meetings.   

 
Based on the compliance mechanism established by the company and on the basis of 
the Compliance Certificate (s) placed and taken on record by the Board of Directors at 
their meeting (s), we further report that; 
 
There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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We further report that during the audit period the company has not incurred any 
specific event / action that can have major bearing on the company’s affairs in 
pursuance of above referred laws, rules, regulations; guidelines, standards etc. 
 
 
For G AAKASH & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 
 
 
 
 
AAKASH GOEL 
(PROP.) 
M. NO.: A57213 
CP NO.: 21629 
 
Date:  02.12.2025 
Place: Haryana 
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ANNEXURE – III 
 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 [Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 
 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the 
affairs of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information 
available in this regard.  
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ANNEXURE - IV 
 

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS KMPS AND EMPLOYEE AND 
COMPARATIVES 

[Pursuant to Section 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34(3) 
and Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations] 

 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the 
affairs of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information 
available in this regard. 
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ANNEXURE – V  
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 
[Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014] 
 
 

 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the 
affairs of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information 
available in this regard. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

During the reporting period, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during the said 
period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs of the 
Company vested with and was carried out by the Resolution Professional/Liquidator in 
accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The 
reconstituted Board of Directors, appointed post-acquisition, has no access to, or 
independent knowledge of, the operations, decisions, transactions, compliances, records or 
internal workings of the Company for the said period.  

The present Board has prepared this report solely on the basis of limited information, 
documents and financial statements available in the public domain and the restricted data 
handed over by the Liquidator, which is not independently verifiable. This document is 
being compiled strictly for the purpose of meeting statutory filing requirements and should 
not be construed as a confirmation, validation, or certification of the correctness, 
completeness or accuracy of any information, disclosures, or statements relating to the 
period prior to the Insolvency Commencement Date.  

The new management, the reconstituted Board of Directors, and the present officers of the 
Company shall not be responsible or liable, in any manner whatsoever, for: 
 any errors, omissions, misstatements, or inconsistencies in the historical 

information; 
 any non-compliances, defaults, penalties, liabilities, or regulatory consequences 

arising out of past periods; or 
 the accuracy or reliability of any legacy data included in this Report. 

 
The Reconstituted Board of Directors presents to the Members the 35th Annual Report of 
the Company on the business and operations of the Company together with the Audited 
Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31st, 2022. 

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) was initiated, on a petition filed 
by MKM Technologies Private Limited (‘the Operational Creditor’) under Section 9 of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“IBC 2016”), against the Company, being 
admitted vide an order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), 
Allahabad Bench dated March 04, 2020. Further, pursuant to the said Order passed by the 
Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad, Mr. Arvind Mittal bearing Registration No. IBBI/PA-001/IP-
P01358/2018 was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) from the date of 
the Order and the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended, during the 
pendency of the proceedings and were exercised by Mr. Arvind Mittal till he continued 
to be the Interim Resolution Professional. Thereafter, Mr. Ganga Ram Agarwal bearing 
Registration No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00874/2019-2020/12777 was appointed on the said 
position and he, in his capacity as RP, took control and custody of the management and 
operations of the Company, vide Hon’ble NCLAT, New Delhi Order dated 21.12.2020 in 
Company Appeal (AT) (Insolvency) No. 1100 of 2020.  
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Upon the failure to achieve a Resolution Plan, the Liquidation proceedings were initiated 
against the Company by an Order dated 06.12.2021 of Hon’ble NCLT in CP 
(IB)/189/ALD/2019 and the RP was confirmed as liquidator of the Company. 

After following due process of law as prescribed under the IBC and the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation Process) Regulation, 2016 (“Liquidation 
Regulation”), the Company was successfully sold as a going concern under Liquidation 
to the Successful Bidder (“Krishna Ventures Limited”/ “KVL”/ “Acquirer”). The Hon’ble 
NCLT by its order dated 21.03.2024 inter-alia approved the directions for implementing 
sale of the Company as a going concern to a Successful Auction Purchaser i.e. Krishna 
Ventures Limited (KVL/Acquirer). For which, the Liquidator issued the Sale Certificate 
dated 12.06.2024 for sale of the Company as going concern pursuant to the provisions of 
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (Code). 

Members may kindly note that, the Directors of the Reconstituted Board were not in office 
for the period to which this report primarily pertains. During the CIRP/Liquidation 
period (i.e. March 4th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024) the Resolution Professional/Liquidator was 
entrusted with the management of the Company. Prior to the Insolvency Commencement 
date, the erstwhile Board of Directors had the oversight on the management of the affairs 
of the Company. 

The reconstituted Board is submitting this report solely to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed thereunder and the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements}, Regulations 2015. The reconstituted Board is not to be considered 
responsible to discharge fiduciary duties with respect to the oversight on financial and 
operational health of the Company and performance of the management for the period 
prior to the Acquisition, in accordance with the Section 32A of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

Members are requested to read this report in light of the fact that the reconstituted Board 
and the new Management, inter alia, are in the process of implementing the NCLT order. 

 
 
1. ENTITY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 

At LEEL Electricals Limited, we are unwavering in our commitment to the principles of 
ethical leadership, transparency, and accountability. At the heart of our governance 
philosophy lies integrity. We hold ourselves to the highest ethical standards, ensuring 
that every decision is made with honesty, fairness, and a commitment to doing what’s 
right. We believe that good governance not only drives our business success but also 
contributes to a more responsible and sustainable future and therefore, our corporate 
governance framework is designed to ensure sustainable success while fostering trust and 
long-term value for all stakeholders 

We are committed to providing clear, accurate, and timely information regarding our 
financial performance, corporate strategy, and decision-making processes. Our leaders 
are accountable for their actions and are guided by a strong sense of responsibility to all 
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stakeholders. The strength of our governance rests on a diverse, independent board of 
directors, who bring a wealth of experience and objectivity to our company. The board 
actively oversees the company’s strategic direction, ensuring that decisions are aligned 
with our long-term objectives and guided by the highest standards of corporate 
governance.  

We are dedicated to compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, and industry 
standards. Our risk management framework ensures we proactively identify, assess, and 
mitigate risks across all areas of the business, from financial performance to 
environmental sustainability. We are committed to responsible business practices, 
incorporating sustainability into our operations to safeguard our future and the well-
being of our communities. 

We recognize the importance of balancing the interests of all stakeholders, including 
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, and the communities in which we 
operate. Our governance framework reflects this commitment by fostering a culture of 
inclusivity, collaboration, and mutual respect. We believe that by aligning our objectives 
with the interests of our stakeholders, we can deliver meaningful, sustainable value. 

Furthermore, we acknowledge that Governance is not static and hence, we continuously 
strive to evolve and improve our practices, regularly reviewing our governance policies 
and seeking feedback from our stakeholders. By fostering a culture of continuous learning 
and innovation, we ensure that our governance practices remain relevant, effective, and 
capable of supporting the dynamic nature of our business environment. 

 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
# Data taken from Public Domain 
 
During the year under review, the Company was under CIRP and the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the management of the Company. Hence, in 
accordance with Regulation 15(2A) and 15(2B), the provisions related to Regulation 17, 
18, 19, 20 and 21 shall not be applicable on the Company during the CIRP proceedings. 
 
The role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors after the Commencement of 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)/ Liquidation shall be fulfilled by 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code 2016 and powers of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof 
stand suspended. 
 
However, the details of the Suspended Board of Directors as on March 31st, 2022, are as 
follows: 
DIN/PAN Name Designation 
07857873 Mr. Deepak Uniyal Non-Executive Director 
06726246 Mr. Velayutham Shoolagiri 

Appojichettiar 
Non-Executive Director 
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08622976 Ms. Kavita Shrivastav Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

 
That pursuant to the Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad, order dated March 21, 2024, the new 
composition of the Board of Directors became effective from July 1, 2024. Details of the 
reconstituted Board, as on date, are as under: 
DIN Name Designation 
07176093 Mr. Neeraj Gupta Managing Director 
11085739 Mr. Bhoopendra Gaur Additional (Executive) Director & CFO 
10686556 Mr. Durgesh Kumar Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Director 
09088347 Mr. Mahesh Chandra Sharma Non-Executive Independent Director 
10204473 Ms. Namrata Sharma Non-Executive Independent Director 
10204543 Mr. Kanwar Nitin SIngh Non-Executive (Additional) 

Independent Director 
 

Members may kindly note that, during the reporting period, the Company was under 
CIRP/Liquidation and during the said period (i.e. March 4th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024) the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the management of the 
Company. The Reconstituted Board, which has been in office since July 1, 2024, is 
submitting this Report solely to ensure compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
Accordingly, the present Directors are not to be regarded as responsible for any non-
compliances or omissions in this regard, for the period under review or for any period 
prior to the acquisition of the Company. 

 
 

3. BOARD COMMITTEES 
 

# Data taken from Public Domain 

 
During the year under review, the Company was under CIRP and the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the management of the Company. Hence, in 
accordance with Regulation 15(2A) and 15(2B), the provisions related to Regulation 17, 
18, 19, 20 and 21 shall not be applicable on the Company during the CIRP proceedings.  
 
The reconstituted Board of Directors is equipped with limited information in this regard. 
Details of committees as on 31st March, 2022 [LB1]are as follows: 
 
(a) Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 
DIN Member

s 
Category Position 

in the 
Date of 
Appointm
ent 

Date of 
Cessation 

Total 
numb
er of 

Numbe
r of 
Meetin
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Committ
ee  

meeti
ngs 
durin
g the 
tenur
e 

gs 
attende
d 

06726246 Mr. 
Velayuth
am 
Shoolagi
ri 
Appojich
ettiar  

Non-
Executiv
e 
Director 

Chairma
n 

11.02.2020 - 0 0 

08622976 Mrs. 
Kavita 
Shrivasta
v  

Indepen
dent 
Director 

Member 11.02.2020 - 0 0 

07857873 Mr. 
Deepak 
Uniyal 

Non-
Executiv
e 
Director 

Member 11.02.2020 - 0 0 

 
Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: During the year under review, Ms. 
Aarushi Bhardwaj (M. No.: A42083) was Company Secretary & Compliance Officer. 
 
Number of Shareholders’ complaints received during the financial year: Not known 
Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders: Not known 
Number of pending complaints: Not known 
 
(b) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 
DIN Member

s 
Category Position 

in the 
Committ
ee  

Date of 
Appointm
ent 

Date of 
Cessation 

Total 
numb
er of 
meeti
ngs 
durin
g the 
tenur
e 

Numbe
r of 
Meetin
gs 
attende
d 

06726246 Mr. 
Velayuth
am 
Shoolagi
ri 
Appojich
ettiar  

Non-
Executiv
e 
Director 

Member 11.02.2020 - 0 0 
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08622976 Mrs. 
Kavita 
Shrivasta
v  

Indepen
dent 
Director 

Member 11.02.2020 - 0 0 

07857873 Mr. 
Deepak 
Uniyal 

Non-
Executiv
e 
Director 

Chairma
n 

11.02.2020 - 0 0 

 
Members may kindly note that, during the reporting period, the Company was under 
CIRP/Liquidation and during the said period (i.e. March 4th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024) the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the management of the 
Company. That pursuant to the Regulation 15(2A) and 15(2B), the provisions related to 
Regulation 18, 19, 20 and 21 shall not be applicable on the Company during the CIRP 
proceedings. 
 
The Reconstituted Board, which has been in office since July 1, 2024, is submitting this 
Report solely to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Accordingly, the present Directors are not to be regarded as responsible for any non-
compliances or omissions in this regard, for the period under review or for any period 
prior to the acquisition of the Company. 

 
 
 
4. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 

 
During the year under review, the Company was under CIRP and accordingly power of 
the board had been dispensed due to the appointment of Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator.  
 
Members may kindly note that, during the reporting period, the Company was under 
CIRP/Liquidation and during the said period (i.e. March 4th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024) the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the management of the 
Company. The Reconstituted Board, which has been in office since July 1, 2024, is 
submitting this Report solely to ensure compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
That the details/information with respect to Remuneration of Directors as at the end of 
Financial Year 2021-22 are not available with the reconstituted Board of Directors and 
accordingly, the present Directors are not to be regarded as responsible for any non-
compliances or omissions in this regard, for the period under review or for any period 
prior to the acquisition of the Company. 
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5. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the 
affairs of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information 
available in this regard. 
 
The Reconstituted Board is submitting this Report solely to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, and the present 
Directors are not to be regarded as responsible for discharging fiduciary duties in relation 
to the affairs of the Company during the said period. That the details/information with 
respect to Code of Conduct as at the end of Financial Year 2021-22 are not available with 
the reconstituted Board of Directors and accordingly the present Directors are not to be 
regarded as responsible for discharging fiduciary duties in relation to the affairs of the 
Company during the said period. 
 
 
 

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
#Data taken from Public Domain 
 
The details pertaining to last three annual general meetings of the company are as under: 
 

29th AGM Regd. Office: A-146, 
RIICO Industrial 
Area, Bhiwadi, 
District Alwar, 
Rajasthan - 301019 

26.08.2016 at 
09:30AM 

No special resolution was 
passed  

30th AGM Rama Ceremonial, 
Main Market, 
Sector 110, 
Kendriya Vihar-II, 
Noida, Uttar 
Pradesh-201301 

26.09.2017 at 
09:30AM 

No special resolution was 
passed  

31st AGM Rama Ceremonial, 
Main Market, 
Sector 110, 
Kendriya Vihar-II, 
Noida, Uttar 
Pradesh-201301 

28.09.2018 at 
09:30AM 

(a) Appointment of Mr. 
Bharat Raj Punj (DIN: 
01432035) as Managing 
Director and increase in 
remuneration 
 
(b) Continuation of current 
tenure of Mr. Ajay Dogra 
(DIN: 02430117) as Non-
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Executive Independent 
Director 
 
(c) Continuation of current 
tenure of Mr. Ramesh Kumar 
Vasudeva (DIN: 06368045) as 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director, as a special 
resolution 
 
(d) Continuation of current 
tenure of AVM Surjit Krishan 
Sharma VSM (Retd.) (DIN: 
00058581) as NonExecutive 
Independent Director 

 
Postal ballot: No special resolution was passed through postal ballot. 
 
 

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 
#Data taken from Public Domain 
 
The Quarterly and Annual financial results for the Financial Year 2021-22 have not been 
submitted to the concerned Stock Exchanges i.e., National Stock Exchange (NSE) and 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) or published in any newspaper or on the website of the 
Company. 
 
Members may kindly note that, during the CIRP/Liquidation period (i.e. March 4th, 2020 
to July 1st, 2024) the Resolution Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the 
management of the Company. Prior to the Insolvency Commencement date, the erstwhile 
Board of Directors had the oversight on the management of the affairs of the Company. 
 
That the Reconstituted Board shall not to be regarded as responsible for any non-
compliances or omissions in this regard, for the period under review or for any period 
prior to the acquisition of the Company, in terms of provisions of Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
 

8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 
 

(a) 35th Annual General Meeting 
 
Day and Date: Monday, December 29th, 2025 
Venue: Plot No 57, Ecotech XII Industrial area, Bisrakh, Gautam Buddha Nagar,  
Uttar Pradesh, India, 201306 
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(b) Financial Year: 1st April 2021 – 31st March 2022 
 
Your Company’s financial year starts on April 1 and ends on March 31 every year. 
The tentative calendar for approval of quarterly financial results for the FY 2021-22 
is as under: 
 

Quarter ended June 30th, 2021 On or before August 14th, 2021 
Quarter ended September 30th, 2021 On or before November 14th, 2021 
Quarter ended December 31st, 2021 On or before February 14th, 2022 
Quarter ended March 31st, 2022 On or before May 30th, 2022 

 
 

(c) Dividend  
Information not available with the Reconstituted Board of Directors of the 
Company. 
 

(d) Listing on Stock Exchanges  
 

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, 
(BSE), 
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street Fort, Mumbai 
– 400 001 

Scrip Code - 517518 

National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE) 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla 
Complex, 
Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051 

Symbol - LEEL 

ISIN allotted by Depositories INE245C01019 
 
Payment of Listing Fees: Information not available with the Reconstituted Board 
of Directors of the Company. 
 
That the Members may kindly note that, during the CIRP/Liquidation period (i.e. 
March 4th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024) the Resolution Professional/Liquidator was 
entrusted with the management of the Company. Prior to the Insolvency 
Commencement date, the erstwhile Board of Directors had the oversight on the 
management of the affairs of the Company. 
 
That the Reconstituted Board shall not to be regarded as responsible for any non-
compliances or omissions in this regard, for the period under review or for any 
period prior to the acquisition of the Company, in terms of provisions of Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 

(e) Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent (RTA): The Company has 
appointed “Skyline Financial Services Private Limited” as its RTA. 
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(f) Share Transfer System: Members may kindly note that during the period under 
review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during the said period (i.e., 
from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs of the 
Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information 
available in this regard. 

 
 

(g) Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2022: 
 
Members may kindly note that during the period under review, the company was 
under CIRP/Liquidation and during the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to 
July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs of the Company was vested with and 
carried out by the Resolution Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the 
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board 
of Directors has no information available in this regard. 
 

(h) Status of Dematerialization of Shares as on March 31st, 2022: 
 
Members may kindly note that during the period under review, the company was 
under CIRP/Liquidation and during the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to 
July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs of the Company was vested with and 
carried out by the Resolution Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the 
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board 
of Directors has no information available in this regard. 
 

(i) Plant Locations: 
 
Members may kindly note that during the period under review, the company was 
under CIRP/Liquidation and during the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 
to July 1st, 2024), the management of the affairs of the Company was vested with 
and carried out by the Resolution Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the 
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board 
of Directors has no information available in this regard. 
 
Accordingly, the Reconstituted Board shall not to be regarded as responsible for 
any non-compliances or omissions in this regard, for the period under review or for 
any period prior to the acquisition of the Company, in terms of provisions of 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
 

(j) Address for Correspondence: 
 
Corporate Office:  
Investor Relation Department  
LEEL Electricals Limited  
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Plot No 57, Ecotech XII Industrial area, 
Bisrakh, Gautam Buddha Nagar, 
Uttar Pradesh, India, 201306 
Contact no.: 0120-4098444, 9910616750 
E mail id: info@leelelectric.com   
Website: www.leelelectric.com 
 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 
Skyline Financial Services Private LIMITED 
D-153 A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, 
New Delhi- 110020 
Tel: 011- 40450193 - 97 
Fax: 91-11-26292681 
E mail id: admin@skylinerta.com  
Website: www.skylinerta.com 
 
 

(k) During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and 
during the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the 
management of the affairs of the Company vested with and was carried out by the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.   
The reconstituted Board of Directors has no information available with respect to 
any of the following: 
i) Materially Significant Related Party Transactions: 
ii) Vigil Mechanism: 
iii) Compliance with Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Requirements: 
iv) Web-link where policy for determining Material Subsidiaries is disclosed: 
v) Web-link where policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions is disclosed:  
vi) Utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment/QIP 
vii) Non-acceptance, along with reasons, of recommendations of any committee of 

the Board which is mandatorily required 
viii) Fees paid to Statutory Auditor and all the entities in the network firm/network 

entity of which the statutory auditor is a part 
ix) Number of complaints filed, disposed and pending under Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
x) Material Subsidiaries 
xi) Compliances with Discretionary requirements under Part E of Schedule II 
xii) With respect to Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account 
xiii) Agreements binding Listed entities 
xiv) Credit Rating, obtained or revised during the year. 
 
 

(l) Non-Compliance of any requirement above: That the Members may kindly note 
that, during the CIRP/Liquidation period (i.e. March 4th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024) the 
Resolution Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the management of the 
Company.  
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The Reconstituted Board is submitting this Report solely to ensure compliance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. That the 
above details are on the basis of limited information available with the reconstituted 
Board and the new management and accordingly, the Reconstituted Board shall not 
to be regarded as responsible for any non-compliances or omissions in this regard, 
for the period under review or for any period prior to the acquisition of the 
Company, in terms of provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
LEEL Electricals Limited 
 

 
 
 
NEERAJ GUPTA 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07176093 
 
Date: December 4th, 2025 
Place: Noida 

 
 
 
DURGESH KUMAR 
Director 
DIN: 10686556 
 
Date: December 4th, 2025 
Place: Noida 
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Annexure - Corporate Governance Report 

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 
(Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V (D) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the 
affairs of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information 
available in this regard. 
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Annexure - Corporate Governance Report 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE U/R 17(8) OF LODR 

 

During the period under review, the company was under CIRP/Liquidation and during 
the said period (i.e., from March 04th, 2020 to July 1st, 2024), the management of the 
affairs of the Company was vested with and carried out by the Resolution 
Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Reconstituted Board of Directors has no information 
available in this regard. 
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Annexure - Corporate Governance Report 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
 

(PURSUANT TO REGULATION 34(3) AND SCHEDULE V PARA C CLAUSE (10)(I) OF 
THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 

REGULATIONS, 2015) 
 

To, 
 
The Members, 
 
LEEL ELECTRICALS LIMITED 
CIN: L29120UP1987PLC091016 
A-603 & 604, 6th Floor, Tower A, Logix Technova, 
Sector 132, Maharishi Nagar, Gautam Buddha Nagar, 
Noida, Uttar Pradesh-201304 
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of M/s. Leel Electricals Limited having CIN: L29120UP1987PLC091016 
and having registered office at A-603 & 604, 6th Floor, Tower A, Logix Technova, Sector 132, 
Maharishi Nagar, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Noida, Uttar Pradesh-201304 (hereinafter referred 
to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) 
of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and declaration received from 
Directors, We hereby certify that the powers of the Directors on the Board of the Company as 
stated below for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been suspended by the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 as the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(“CIRP”) was initiated, on a petition filed by MKM Technologies Private Limited (‘the 
Operational Creditor’) under Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“IBC 
2016”), against the Company, being admitted vide an order of Hon’ble National Company 
Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Allahabad Bench dated March 04, 2020. Further, pursuant to the said 
Order passed by the Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad, Mr. Arvind Mittal bearing Registration No. 
IBBI/PA-001/IPP01358/2018 was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) 
from the date of the Order and the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended, during 
the pendency of the proceedings and were exercised by Mr. Arvind Mittal till he continued to 
be the Interim Resolution Professional. Thereafter, Mr. Ganga Ram Agarwal bearing 
Registration No. IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00874/2018-1920/12777 was appointed on the said 
position and he, in his capacity as RP, took control and custody of the management and 
operations of the Company, vide Hon’ble NCLAT, New Delhi Order dated 21.12.2020 in 
Company Appeal (AT) (Insolvency) No. 1100 of 2020. 
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S. NO. NAME OF DIRECTOR DIN 
DATE OF 

APPOINTMENT IN 
COMPANY 

1 Mr. Velayutham Shoolagiri 
Appojichettiar 

06726246 14.01.2020 

2 Mrs. Kavita Shrivastav 08622976 28.01.2020 
3 Mr. Deepak Uniyal 07857873 30.01.2020 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is 
the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
For G AAKASH & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 
 
 
 
  
AAKASH GOEL 
(PROP.) 
M. NO.: A57213 
CP NO.: 21629 
 
Date:  02.12.2025 
Place: Panipat 
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Annexure - Corporate Governance Report 

PCS COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
The Members of Leel Electricals Limited 
 
1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by 
Leel Electricals Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2022, as 
stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs 
C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”). 
 
Managements’ Responsibility  
 
2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
Management of the Company. However, the role and responsibilities of the Board of 
Directors after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) 
was being fulfilled by Resolution Professional/Liquidator in accordance with the 
provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and powers of the Board of 
Directors and Committees were suspended. This responsibility includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the 
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the SEBI 
LODR Regulations. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
 
3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation 
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company.  
 
4. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and 
documents maintained by the Company for the purpose of providing reasonable 
assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the 
Company. 
 
5. We conducted our examination of the relevant records of the Company in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on ‘Certification of Corporate Governance’ issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as 
applicable for the purpose of this certificate. Further, we conducted our examination in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on ‘Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes 
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(Revised 2016)’ issued by the ICAI. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with 
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.  
 
6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on 
Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews 
of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services 
Engagements.  
 
Opinion 
 
7. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the 
information and explanations given to us and the representations provided by the 
Management, we certify that the Company was not required to comply with the 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to 
(i) of regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI LODR 
Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2022 as these regulations were not 
applicable on the Company during the CIRP proceedings. Further, we would like to 
mention the following points in order to maintain the fairness of the report: 
 
a. The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) was initiated, on a petition 

filed by MKM Technologies Private Limited (‘the Operational Creditor’) under 
Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“IBC 2016”), against the 
Company, being admitted vide an order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal 
(“NCLT”), Allahabad Bench dated March 04, 2020. Further, pursuant to the said 
Order passed by the Hon’ble NCLT, Allahabad, Mr. Arvind Mittal bearing 
Registration No. IBBI/PA-001/IPP01358/2018 was appointed as the Interim 
Resolution Professional (IRP) from the date of the Order and the powers of the Board 
of Directors stood suspended, during the pendency of the proceedings and were 
exercised by Mr. Arvind Mittal till he continued to be the Interim Resolution 
Professional. Thereafter, Mr. Ganga Ram Agarwal bearing Registration No. 
IBBI/IPA-002/IP-N00874/2018-1920/12777 was appointed on the said position and 
he, in his capacity as RP, took control and custody of the management and operations 
of the Company, vide Hon’ble NCLAT, New Delhi Order dated 21.12.2020 in 
Company Appeal (AT) (Insolvency) No. 1100 of 2020. 
 

b. Upon the failure to achieve a Resolution Plan, the Liquidation proceedings were 
initiated against the Company by an Order dated 06.12.2021 of Hon’ble NCLT in CP 
(IB)/189/ALD/2019 and the RP was confirmed as liquidator of the Company. 

 
c. After following due process of law as prescribed under the IBC and the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation Process) Regulation, 2016 (“Liquidation 
Regulation”), the Company was successfully sold as a going concern under 
Liquidation to the Successful Bidder (“Krishna Ventures Limited”/ “KVL”/ 
“Acquirer”). The Hon’ble NCLT by its order dated 21.03.2024 inter-alia approved the 
directions for implementing sale of the Company as a going concern to a Successful 
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Auction Purchaser i.e. Krishna Ventures Limited (KVL/Acquirer). For which, the 
Liquidator issued the Sale Certificate dated 12.06.2024 for sale of the Company as 
going concern pursuant to the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 (Code).  

 
d. The Directors of the Reconstituted Board were not in office for the period to which this 

report primarily pertains. During the CIRP/Liquidation period (i.e. March 4th, 2020 
to July 1st, 2024) the Resolution Professional/Liquidator was entrusted with the 
management of the Company. Prior to the Insolvency Commencement date, the 
erstwhile Board of Directors had the oversight on the management of the affairs of the 
Company. 

 
e. The reconstituted Board is not to be considered responsible to discharge fiduciary 

duties with respect to the oversight on financial and operational health of the Company 
and performance of the management for the period prior to the Acquisition, in 
accordance with the Section 32A of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
However, due to the fact that the Company was under CIRP, no records were available 
with the new management of the Company. The Company is in the process of 
implementation of the Approved NCLT Order and have undertaken activities of 
compliance to the various applicable provisions of the laws. 

 
8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company.  
 
Restrictions on use  
 
9. This Certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid 
Regulations and may not be suitable for any other purpose. 
 
For G Aakash & Associates  
Company Secretaries  
 
 
 
Aakash Goel 
(Prop.) 
M. No.: A57213 
CP No.: 21629 
Peer Review No.: 1685/2022 
 
Date:  02.12.2025 
Place: Panipat 
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